ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT
YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

UNITED WAY OF DENTON COUNTY, INC. ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT

March 31, 2023

TABLE OF CONTENTS

	Page
Independent Auditors' Report	1-3
Statement of Financial Position	4
Statement of Activities	5
Statement of Cash Flows	6
Statement of Functional Expenses	7
Notes to the Financial Statements	8-14
Federal Awards Section	
Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards	15-16
Report on Compliance with Requirements Applicable to Each Major Program and on Internal Control Over Compliance in Accordance with the Uniform Guidance	17-19
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs	20
Corrective Action Plan	21
Schedule of Expenditures and Federal Awards	22
Notes to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards	23

Members:

AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF

CERTIFIED PUBLIC

ACCOUNTANTS

TEXAS SOCIETY OF CERTIFIED

PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

HANKINS, EASTUP, DEATON, TONN, SEAY & SCARBOROUGH

A Limited Liability Company

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

902 NORTH LOCUST P.O. BOX 977 DENTON, TX 76202-0977

TEL. (940) 387-8563 FAX (940) 383-4746

Independent Auditors' Report

The Board of Directors United Way of Denton County, Inc. Denton, Texas

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of United Way of Denton County, Inc. (a nonprofit organization), which comprise the statement of financial position as of March 31, 2023, and the related statements of activities, cash flows, and functional expenses for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of United Way of Denton County, Inc. as of March 31, 2023, and the changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in *Government Auditing Standards*, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of United Way of Denton County, Inc. and to meet our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis of our audit opinion.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about United Way of Denton County, Inc.'s ability to continue as a going concern within one year after the date that the financial statements are available to be issued.

Auditors' Responsibilities for the Financial Statements

Our responsibilities are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentation, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgement made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, we:

- Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
- Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.
- Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
 procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
 an opinion on the effectiveness of United Way of Denton County, Inc.'s internal control.
 Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.
- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the financial statements.
- Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about United Way of Denton County, Inc.'s ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit findings, and certain internal control related matters that we identified during the audit.

Report on Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a whole. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards, as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with *Government Auditing Standards*, we have also issued our report dated August 2, 2023, on our consideration of United Way of Denton County, Inc.'s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with *Government Auditing Standards* in considering United Way of Denton County, Inc.'s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Hankins, Eastup, Docton, Tonn, Seay + Scarborough, LLC

Hankins, Eastup, Deaton, Tonn, Seay & Scarborough, LLC Denton, Texas

August 2, 2023

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION MARCH 31, 2023

ASSETS	
Current Assets: Cash and cash equivalents Operating investments Promises to give, net Accounts receivable - grants Prepaid expenses Total Current Assets	\$ 5,080,183 77,316 643,800 519,830 20,741 6,341,870
Property and Equipment Land Building Office equipment and furniture Less accumulated depreciation Net Property and Equipment	663,571 2,684,454 538,690 (882,953) 3,003,762
Total Assets <u>LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS</u>	\$ 9,345,632
Current Liabilities: Accounts payable Designated funds payable Security deposits Unearned income - grants Deferred insurance proceeds Current portion of mortgage payable Total Current Liabilities	539,977 299,616 20,331 2,629,135 19,957 75,787 3,584,803
Other Liabilities: Mortgage payable, net of current portion Total Other Liabilities	2,493,419 2,493,419
Net Assets: Without donor restrictions With donor restrictions Total Net Assets Total Liabilities and Net Assets	2,601,021 666,389 3,267,410 \$ 9,345,632
Total Elabilities and Net /1555ts	Ψ 9,040,002

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

	1	Without		With		
		Donor		Donor		
	Re	estrictions	Re	estrictions	T	otal
Public Support and Revenue:						
Campaign Results:	•	050004	•	000 050		-00.000
Gross campaign results	\$	956,964	\$	623,256	\$ 1,5	580,220
Gross campaign results in prior year released from restriction		E20 020		(E20,020)		
Total Campaign Results		529,938 1,486,902		(529,938) 93,318	1 5	80,220
Total Campaign Nesdits		1,400,902		93,316	1,5	000,220
Loss on uncollectible promises to give		(172,875)		_	(1	172,875)
Net Campaign Revenue		1,314,027		93,318		107,345
		.,				,
Other Revenue:						
Special events		200,209		-	2	200,209
Other contributions		31,156		-		31,156
Other grants		8,987,138		40,300	9,0	27,438
Service fees		39,085		-		39,085
Rental income (net of \$181,791 rental expenses)		98,967		-		98,967
Interest income		7,288		-		7,288
Miscellaneous income		14,942		-		14,942
Net assets released from restrictions		121,072		(121,072)		-
Total Other Revenue		9,499,857		(80,772)	9,4	19,085
Total Public Support and Revenue	1	0,813,884		12,546	10,8	326,430
Expenses:						
Program Services:						
Funds awarded/distributed		774,457		_	7	74,457
Community capacity building		1,012,661		_		12,661
Community education		76,862		-	.,-	76,862
I&R research		11,540		_		11,540
VITA		68,512		-		68,512
Project blueprint		8,737		_		8,737
COVID-19 relief		7,819,672			7,8	19,672
Total Program Services		9,772,441			9,7	72,441
Cumparting Cardinas						
Supporting Services: Organizational administration		339,760			2	20.760
Campaign		347,162		-		39,760 47,162
Total Supporting Services		686,922				86,922
rotal Supporting Services		000,322				100,322
Federal income tax		20,573		_		20,573
Total Expenses	1	0,479,936		-	10,4	79,936
Change in Net Assets		333,948		12,546	3	46,494
Net Assets, Beginning of Year	:	2,255,858		665,058	2,9	20,916
Net Assets, End of Year	\$ 2	2,589,806	\$	677,604	\$ 3,2	67,410

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS MARCH 31, 2023

4		
Cash Flows from Operating Activities:		
Change in net assets Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net cash provided by operating activities:	\$	346,494
		140,272
Depreciation expense		140,272
(Increase) decrease in pledges receivable		•
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable - grants		(338,446)
(Increase) decrease in prepaid expenses		(6,582)
Increase (decrease) in security deposits		(1,300)
Increase (decrease) in unearned income - grants		992,537
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable		467,281
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable		19,957
Increase (decrease) in designated funds payable	· ;	(19,659)
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities		1,717,126
Cash Flows from Investing Activities:		
Acquisition of property and equipment		(25,832)
(Increase) decrease in operating investments		(87)
Net Cash Used by Investing Activities		(25,919)
Cash Flows from Financing Activities:		
Payments made on line of credit payable		(50,000)
Payments made on mortgage payable		(71,980)
Net Cash Used by Investing Activities	·	(121,980)
Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents		1,569,227
Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning of Year	_	3,510,956
Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Year	\$	5,080,183
Supplemental Data: Cash paid for interest Cash paid for income taxes	\$	94,274 23,975

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES For the Year Ended March 31, 2023

				Program Services	vices				ing	Support Services		
	Allocation Services	Community Capacity Building	Community Education	I&R Research	VITA	Project Blueprint	COVID-19 Relief	Total Program Services	Organizational Administration	Campaign	Total Support Services	Total
Allocations and Awards	441,468	,	ı	1	1	,		441 468				007
Total Allocations and Awards	441.468		,					441,400		,	1	441,468
						ı		441,400		ı		441,468
Salaries and wages	54,542	557,833	26,466	1	38,548	1	1,016,748	1,694,137	167.481	216.621	384 102	2 078 239
Payroll taxes	4,249	43,178	2,264	89	3,068	89	76,673	129,568	12,787	16,899	29,686	159,254
Employee benefits	11,023	72,929	553	'	4,767		131,008	220,280	21,811	32,334	54,145	274.425
Total payroll expenses	69,814	673,940	29,283	89	46,383	89	1,224,429	2,043,985	202,079	265,854	467,933	2,511,918
Contract services	1,000	7,808	ı		1,070	ı	13,300	23,178	12.300	1.400	13 700	36.878
Supplies	377	8,335	18,562	10	258	2,776	802	31,120	14,693	2,793	17.486	48,606
Postage and shipping	362	1,088	206	t	226	06	ı	2,272	904	2,634	3,538	5,810
Telephone and networks	5,138	t		5,109	5,137	,	ı	15,384	5,139	. 1	5,139	20,523
Occupancy	2,264	19,843	800	1,898	2,791	741	3,532	31,869	6,883	3,019	9,902	41,771
Equipment rental & maintenance	9,443	54,707	5,295	2,288	6,612	1,702	10,347	90,394	15,022	10,660	25,682	116,076
Frinting	, ;		157	1	٠	1	,	157	1,162	7,763	8,925	9,082
Iravel	99	55,644	4,062	ı	314	1	6,839	66,925	2,667	4,056	9,723	76,648
Cornerences and meetings	1 1	969	ı	r	1		1	969	375	•	375	1,071
Insurance	1,798	7,681	ı	1	1,193	240	1	10,912	3,424	2,284	5,708	16,620
In-Kind Aada		1 0	' j	1	ı			•	3,423	10,000	13,423	13,423
Awards	, ?	1,000	1,747		1			2,747	185	1,043	1,228	3,975
Dues	31	3,119	6,615	15	211	15	•	10,006	886	2,836	3,722	13,728
Other	177	3,490	2,041	84	183	84	4,450	10,509	3,252	14,026	17,278	27,787
Veterans program expenses	•	147,451	1	,	•			147,451	1	1	1	147,451
Emergency assistance payments	, ;	•		1	ŧ		6,553,086	6,553,086	•		ı	6,553,086
SDC CI Joint Venture expense	181,372	•	•		•			181,372	1,832	•	1,832	183,204
United Way of America dues	1,668	10,860	1,668	1,668	1,668	1,668		19,200	7,925	6,232	14,157	33,357
United Way of Texas dues	400	800	4,220	400	560	400		6,780	1,201	2,081	3,282	10,062
I otal Expenses			1	:	,							
Before Depreciation	2/3,910	996,462	74,956	11,540	909'99	7,784	7,816,785	9,248,043	286,352	336,681	623,033	9,871,076
Interest Expense Depreciation of Property	1	•	•	1	1	1	2,887	2,887	48,644	ı	48,644	51,531
and Equipment	59,079	16,199	1,906	1	1,906	953		80,043	4,764	10,481	15,245	95,288
Total Expenses	774,457	1,012,661	76,862	11,540	68,512	8,737	7,819,672	9,772,441	339,760	347,162	686,922	10,459,363

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS MARCH 31, 2023

NOTE 1 – Nature of Activities and Significant Accounting Policies

The nature of activities and summary of significant accounting policies of United Way of Denton County, Inc. (the Organization) is presented to assist in understanding the Organization's financial statements. Management of the Organization is responsible for the accuracy and internal consistency of the preparation of the financial statements and notes contained in this annual report.

<u>Nature of Activities</u> –The United Way of Denton County, Inc. serves as a catalyst to facilitate the organized effort of the community to identify and address the existing and emerging human needs of its people. The Organization is supported primarily through donor contributions and governmental grants.

<u>Basis of Presentation</u> – The accompanying financial statements have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP). Financial statements presented follow the requirements of Accounting Standards Update (ASU) 2016-14, Not-for-profit Entities (Topic 958) – *Presentation of Financial Statements of Not-For-Profit Entities*.

Net assets, revenues, gains, and losses are classified based on the existence or absence of donor or grantor imposed restrictions. Accordingly, net assets and changes therein are classified and reported as follows:

Net Assets Without Donor Restrictions – Net assets available for use in general operations and not subject to donor (or certain grantor) restrictions.

Net Assets With Donor Restrictions – Net assets subject to donor- (or certain grantor-) imposed restrictions. Some donor-imposed restrictions are temporary in nature, such as those that will be met by the passage of time or other events specified by the donor. Other donor-imposed restrictions are perpetual in nature, where the donor stipulates that resources be maintained in perpetuity. Gifts of long-lived assets and gifts of cash restricted for the acquisition of long-lived assets are recognized as revenue when the assets are placed in service.

We report contributions and grants restricted by donors/grantors as increases in net assets without donor restrictions if the restrictions expire (that is, when a stipulated time restriction ends or purpose restriction is accomplished) in the reporting period in which the revenue is recognized. All other donor-restricted contributions are reported as increases in net assets with donor restrictions, depending on the nature of the restrictions. When a restriction expires, net assets with donor restrictions are reclassified to net assets without donor restrictions and reported in the statements of activities as net assets released from restrictions.

<u>Revenue and Revenue Recognition</u> – Revenue is recognized when earned. Program service fees and payments under cost-reimbursable contracts received in advance are deferred to the applicable period in which the related services are performed or expenditures are incurred, respectively. Contributions are recognized when cash, securities or other assets, an unconditional promise to give, or notification of a beneficial interest is received. Conditional promises to give are not recognized until the conditions on which they depend have been substantially met.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS MARCH 31, 2023

NOTE 1 – Nature of Activities and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies – Continued

<u>Cash and Cash Equivalents</u> – Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash held in checking and money market accounts.

<u>Operating Investments</u> – Operating investments consist of a non-brokered certificate of deposit. The certificate of deposit is a one-year certificate that will mature in the next fiscal year. The certificate of deposit is reported at carrying value (cost), which approximates fair value.

<u>Support and Promises to Give</u> – Annual campaigns are conducted to raise support for allocation to participating agencies in the current and subsequent year. The Organization previously conducted a capital campaign soliciting contributions and pledges to be used for building purchase or renovation costs. Unconditional promises to give are recognized as revenue when the promise to give is made, in accordance with GAAP. All support is considered available for unrestricted use or temporarily restricted due to time restrictions, unless specifically restricted by the donor. Promises to give are recorded as received, and allowances are provided for amounts estimated as uncollectable. The allowance for uncollectible pledges is established by the United Way Management based on past collection experience and current economic conditions.

Some capital campaign promises to give are to be paid over time periods ranging from one to five years.

Donor restricted pass-through pledges are not recognized as revenue as the Organization acts only as an intermediary between the donor and the ultimate beneficiary as required by FASB ASC 958-605, Not-For-Profit Entities-Revenue Recognition. The SECC campaign and all specific donor donations to designated agencies fall under this designation.

<u>Contributions</u> – The Organization's success in conducting its mission is highly dependent on attracting committed volunteers. A substantial number of volunteers have donated significant amounts of their time in the Organization's management and fund raising campaigns during the year; however, these donated services are not reflected in the financial statements since the services do not require specialized skills. Donated property and professional services are recorded at their estimated fair value as of the date of the donation.

<u>Property and Equipment</u> – Property and equipment are stated at cost, or if donated, the approximate fair value as of the date of the donation, less accumulated depreciation. Depreciation is computed on the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets, which range from 3 to 30 years. Expenditures for the new construction, major renewals and replacements, and equipment with a cost in excess of \$500 are capitalized. Land is not being depreciated.

<u>Income Taxes</u> – The Organization is a not-for-profit corporation and is exempt from federal income taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code (IRC) and from Texas franchise and sales and use taxes. In addition, contributions to the Organization qualify for the charitable contribution deduction under IRC Section 170(b)(I)(A). United Way of Denton County, Inc. has been classified as an organization that is not a private foundation under IRC Section 509(a)(2).

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS MARCH 31, 2023

NOTE 1 - Nature of Activities and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies - Continued

The Organization applies the provisions of FASB ASC 74, *Income Taxes* related to the accounting for uncertainty in income taxes, which prescribes a recognition threshold and measurement attribute for financial statement recognition and measurement of a tax position taken or expected to be taken in a tax return. This standard also provides guidance on derecognition, classification, interest and penalties, accounting in interim periods, disclosure, and transition. For the year ended March 31, 2023, the organization does not believe it currently holds any uncertain tax positions, therefore no recognition of uncertain tax positions is reflected in the financial statements. There was unrelated business income (rental income) for the year ended March 31, 2023, and as a result, an income tax provision of \$20,573 has been recorded.

<u>Use of Estimates</u> – The preparation of financial statements inconformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

<u>Advertising Costs</u> – Advertising costs are expensed as incurred.

NOTE 2 - Promises to Give

Receivables from promises to give at March 31, 2023 consisted of the following promises and the expected time of collection:

Receivable in one year or less	\$	762,203
Receivable in two to five years		762,203
Less allowance for uncollectible amounts		(118,403)
Less discount to present value	_	
Promises to give, net	\$	643,800

\$20,544 of the net receivables are promises to give to the Organization's capital building campaign.

NOTE 3 – Property and Equipment

Property and equipment consist of the following at March 31, 2023:

	2023
Land	\$ 663,571
Building	2,684,454
Office furniture and equipment	538,690
Less accumulated depreciation	(882,953)
Total	<u>\$ 3,003,762</u>

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS MARCH 31, 2023

NOTE 4 - Contributions - Donated Services and Materials

A substantial number of unpaid volunteers have made significant contributions of their time to the Organization's activities during the years. The value of this contributed time is not reflected in these statements. The contributions of services are recognized only if the services received (a) create or enhance non-financial assets or (b) require specialized skills that are provided by individuals possessing those skills and would typically need to be purchased if not provided by donation.

NOTE 5 – Designated Funds Payable

The State Employee Charitable Contribution program (SECC) is the only authorized charitable fundraising drive in the State workplace. The United Way serves as the Local Campaign Manager for the SECC campaign. The Organization acts as an intermediary between the donor and the ultimate beneficiary. The SECC funds and designated funds collected through the United Way Campaign are not recognized as revenue by the Organization, but are reported as a designated payable in the statement of the financial position.

NOTE 6 - Liquidity and Availability

Financial assets available for general expenditure, that is, without donor or other restrictions limiting their use, within one year of the balance sheet date, comprise the following:

Cash and cash equivalents	\$ 2,151,432
Accounts receivable	519,830
Operating investments	77,316
Promises to give	 623,256
	\$ 3,371,834

NOTE 7 – Mortgage Payable

The Organization has a mortgage payable to a financial institution dated July 8, 2020 secured by its building. The original principal amount was \$2,717,000. The mortgage payable has an initial interest rate of 3.45% through July 31, 2030. The note calls for monthly payments of interest only through February 1, 2021. Beginning March 1, 2021, monthly principal and interest payments of \$13,602.81 are payable through February 1, 2046, subject to change on each interest rate change. Beginning August 1, 2030, and every five years thereafter, the interest rate will be adjusted to the Wall Street Journal Prime Rate, rounded to the nearest 1/10th of 1 percent. At each interest rate change date, the monthly principal and interest payable will be adjusted to fully amortize the loan by the maturity date of February 1, 2046. During the term of the loan, the interest rate cannot be less than 3.45% or more than 10.0%. The balance of the note at March 31, 2023 was \$2,569,206.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS MARCH 31, 2023

NOTE 7 – Mortgage Payable (Continued)

Future maturities of the mortgage payable are as follows:

Years Ending March 31,

2024	\$ 75,78
2025	78,44
2026	81,19
2027	84,03
2028	86,98
Thereafter	2,162,76
	<u>\$ 2,569,20</u>

NOTE 8 – Line of Credit Payable

The Organization has a \$500,000 line of credit with a financial institution. Interest is stated at the Wall Street Journal prime rate (8.0% at March 31, 2023) with interest payments due each month until June 11, 2023, when all unpaid principal and interest will be due. The line of credit is secured by the office building owned by the Organization. There was an outstanding balance on the line of credit of \$50,000 at March 31, 2022, which was fully repaid in November 2022.

NOTE 9 – Lease Commitments

The Organization leases certain office equipment under operating leases expiring through September 2025. Minimum future rental payments under non-cancelable operating leases as of March 31, 2023 are as follows:

03/31/2024	\$ 9,126
03/31/2025	9,126
03/31/2026	 3,802
Totals	\$ 22.054

Rent expense under operating leases was \$9,126 for the year ended March 31, 2023.

NOTE 10 – Functionalized Expenses

The financial statements report certain categories of expenses that are attributed to more than one program or supporting function. Therefore, expenses require allocation on a reasonable basis that is consistently applied. The expenses that are allocated include occupancy and depreciation, which are allocated on a square footage basis, as well as salaries and wages, benefits, payroll taxes, professional services, office expenses, information technology, interest, insurance, and other, which are allocated on the basis of estimates of time and effort.

NOTE 11 – Storm Damage/Insurance Proceeds

In December 2022, the Organization's offices experienced broken pipes due to a winter storm. An insurance claim was filed, and extensive repairs were required. Repairs were substantially complete as of March 31, 2023. In late March 2023, the Organization received insurance these proceeds to vendors who completed the repairs. This \$331,735 is included in Accounts Payable

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS MARCH 31, 2023

NOTE 11 – Storm Damage/Insurance Proceeds (Continued)

in the Statement of Financial Position. As of March 31, 2023, the Organization had received \$19,957 more in insurance proceeds than the repair costs it had incurred. This amount is shown as Deferred insurance proceeds in the Statement of Financial Position.

NOTE 12 - Retirement Plan

The Organization sponsors a defined contribution retirement plan described in Section 403(b) of the Internal Revenue Code. The plan was amended effective January 1, 2022. Employees who work 30 hours or more per week are eligible to participate after 90 days of employment. Any eligible employee can make voluntary contributions to the plan. The Organization contributes six percent of compensation for eligible participants hired before January 1, 2022. For participants hired after January 1, 2022, the Organization contributes six percent of compensation for participants that contribute at least two percent of compensation; and four percent of compensation for participants that contribute less than two percent of compensation. For participants hired after January 1, 2022, the Organization's contributions to the plan vest after two years of service, while other employees are fully vested for all employer contributions. The Organization's contributions to the plan for the year ended March 31, 2023, were \$99,926.

NOTE 13 –Net Assets with Donor Restrictions

Net assets are subject to donor-imposed stipulations that may or will be met, either by actions of the Organization and/or the passage of time. When a restriction expires, restricted net assets are reclassified to net assets without donor restrictions and reported in the statement of activities as net assets released from restrictions. As of March 31, 2023, net assets with donor restrictions were as follows:

Annual campaign promises to give, net	\$ 623,256
Capital campaign contributions	20,544
Barriers fund contributions	 33,804
Total net assets with donor restrictions	\$ 677,604

NOTE 14 – Concentration of Credit and Market Risk

The Organization maintains various bank accounts that may from time to time contain balances in excess of federally insured limits. The Organization manages this risk by maintaining the deposits with high quality financial institutions.

The Organization has various receivables as of March 31, 2023. The Organization considers its risk of loss from receivables (net of allowance for uncollectible amounts) to be minimal.

The Organization received approximately 51.8% of its contributions from fifteen companies and/or their employees for the 2022 pledge campaign year. COVD-19 relief grants from Denton County, Texas accounted for 72% of total grants.

NOTE 15 – Subsequent Events

Management has evaluated the impact of all subsequent events on the Organization through August 2, 2023, the date of financial statements issuance.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS MARCH 31, 2023

NOTE 16 - Rental Income

In June 2018, the Organization purchased the building in which the Organization's offices are located. The Organization occupies fifty percent of the building and rents the remaining 50% to other tenants. The Organization received \$280,758 in rental income during the fiscal year ended March 31, 2023. The rental income is reported in the statement of activities net of \$181,791 of rental expenses. The rental expenses incurred are as follows:

Interest expense	\$	45,630
Property management fees		15,150
Property taxes		29,667
Insurance		7,006
Repairs		9,467
Security		1,549
Maintenance		8,675
Miscellaneous		3,125
Utilities		16,538
Depreciation	·	44,984
Total	\$	181,791

NOTE 17 – Financial Instruments

Accounts receivable – The amounts reported in the accompanying statements of financial position as accounts receivable approximate fair value because of the short maturities of those instruments.

Receivables from promises to give – The amounts reported in the accompanying statements of financial position as receivables from promises to give approximate fair value because of the short maturities of those instruments.

Accounts payable and other amounts payable – The carrying amounts reported in the accompanying statements of the financial position for accounts payable and other amounts payable approximate fair value.

The carrying amounts and fair value of the United Way's financial instruments at March 31, 2023 are as follows:

Financial Access	Carrying <u>Amount</u>	Fair <u>Value</u>
Financial Assets: Cash and cash equivalents Operating Investments Promises to give, net Other	\$ 5,080,183 77,316 643,800 530,571	\$ 5,080,183 77,316 643,800 530,571
Financial liabilities: Accounts payable and other amounts payable Unearned income -grants Deferred insurance proceeds Long-term mortgage payable	859,924 2,629,135 19,957 2,569,206	859,924 2,629,135 19,957 2,569,206



Members:

AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF

CERTIFIED PUBLIC

ACCOUNTANTS

TEXAS SOCIETY OF CERTIFIED

PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

HANKINS, EASTUP, DEATON, TONN, SEAY & SCARBOROUGH

A Limited Liability Company

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

902 NORTH LOCUST P.O. BOX 977 DENTON, TX 76202-0977

> TEL₊(940) 387-8563 FAX (940) 383-4746

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Board of Directors United Way of Denton County, Inc. Denton, Texas

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in *Government Auditing Standards* issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of United Way of Denton County, Inc. (a nonprofit organization), which comprise the statement of financial position as of March 31, 2023, and the related statements of activities, functional expenses, and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated August 2, 2023.

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered United Way of Denton County, Inc.'s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of United Way of Denton County, Inc.'s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Organization's internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

Report on Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether United Way of Denton County, Inc.'s financial statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under *Government Auditing Standards*.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the organization's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of the audit performed in accordance with *Government Auditing Standards* in considering the organization's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Hankins, Eastup, Deaton, Tonn, Seay & Scarborough, LLC
Hankins, Eastup, Deaton, Tonn, Seay & Scarborough, LLC

Denton, Texas

August 2, 2023

Members:

AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF

CERTIFIED PUBLIC

ACCOUNTANTS

TEXAS SOCIETY OF CERTIFIED

PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

HANKINS, EASTUP, DEATON, TONN, SEAY & SCARBOROUGH

A Limited Liability Company

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

902 NORTH LOCUST P.O. BOX 977 DENTON, TX 76202-0977

> TEL. (940) 387-8563 FAX (940) 383-4746

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR FEDERAL PROGRAM AND REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

To the Board of Directors United Way of Denton County, Inc. Denton, Texas

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

We have audited United Way of Denton County, Inc.'s compliance with the types of compliance requirements identified as subject to audit in the *OMB Compliance Supplement* that could have a direct and material effect on each of United Way of Denton County, Inc.'s major federal programs for the year ended March 31, 2023. United Way of Denton County, Inc.'s major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor's results section of the accompanying schedule of finding and questioned costs.

In our opinion, United Way of Denton County, Inc. complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs for the year ended March 31, 2023.

Basis for Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in *Government Auditing Standards*, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. *Code of Federal Regulations* Part 200, *Uniform Administrative Requirements*, *Costs Principles*, and *Audit Requirements for Federal Awards* (Uniform Guidance). Our responsibilities under those standards and the Uniform Guidance are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section of our report.

We are required to be independent of United Way of Denton County, Inc. and to meet other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal program. Our audit does not provide a legal determination of United Way of Denton County, Inc.'s compliance with the compliance requirements referred to above.

Responsibilities of Management for Compliance

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements referred to above and for the design, implementation, and maintenance of effective internal control over compliance with the requirement of laws, statutes, regulations, rules, contracts, or grant agreements applicable to its federal programs.

Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether material noncompliance with the compliance requirements referred to above occurred, whether due to fraud or error, and express an opinion on United Way of Denton County, Inc.'s compliance based on our audit. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefor is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, *Government Auditing Standards*, and the Uniform Guidance will always detect material noncompliance when it exists. The risk of not detecting material noncompliance resulting from fraud is higher than for that resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Noncompliance with the compliance requirements referred to above is considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, it would influence the judgement made by a reasonable user of the report on compliance about United Way of Denton County, Inc.'s compliance with the requirements of each major federal program as a whole.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, *Government Auditing Standards*, and the Uniform Guidance, we:

- Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
- Identify and assess the risks of material noncompliance, whether due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding United Way of Denton County, Inc.'s compliance with the compliance requirements referred to above and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.
- Obtain an understanding of United Way of Denton County, Inc.'s internal control over compliance relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of United Way of Denton County, Inc.'s internal control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and any significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in internal control over compliance that we identified during the audit.

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of

compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A *significant deficiency in internal control over compliance* is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section above and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies in internal control over compliance. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

Our audit was not designed for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

Hankin, Eastup, Deaton, Tony, Seay + Scarborough, LLC

Hankins, Eastup, Deaton, Tonn, Seay & Scarborough, LLC Denton, Texas

August 2, 2023

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

I. Summary of Auditor's Results	
Financial Statements	
Type of auditors' report issued	Unmodified
Internal control over financial reporting:	
Material weaknesses identified?	Yes <u>X</u> No
Significant deficiencies identified that are not considered to be material weaknesses?	Yes <u>X</u> No
Noncompliance material to financial statements noted?	Yes <u>X</u> No
Federal Awards	
Internal control over major programs:	
Material weaknesses identified?	Yes <u>X</u> No
Significant deficiencies identified that are not considered to be material weaknesses?	Yes <u>X</u> _No
Type of auditors' report issued on compliance for major programs	Unmodified
Did the audit disclose findings which are required to be reported in accordance with 2 CFR 200.516(a)?	Yes <u>X</u> No
Identification of major programs:	
FALN 14.231 - Emergency Solutions Grants Program FALN 21.023 - Emergency Rental Assistance Program FALN 21.027 - Coronavirus State & Local Fiscal Recovery Funds	
Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and Type B programs	\$750,000
Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee?	_X_Yes No
II. Financial Statement Findings	
None	
III. Findings and Questioned Costs for State and Federal Awards	
None	

CORRECTIVE ACTION PLAN FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

CORRECTIVE ACTION PLAN:

None Required

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

TON THE TEAN EN				
(1)	(2)	(3)	(4)	
FEDERAL GRANTOR/	Federal	Pass-Through		
PASS-THROUGH GRANTOR/	FALN	Entity Identifying	Federal	
PROGRAM or CLUSTER TITLE	Number	Number	Expenditures	
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND URBAN DEVE				
Continuum of Care Program	14.267	TX0530L6T0722002	<u>\$ 100,670</u>	
Total Direct Program			100,670	
Passed Through Texas Department of Housing and Co Emergency Solutions Grants Program	ommunity Affa 14.231	<u>airs</u> 44206070041	1,476,293	
Total FALN Number 14.231			1,476,293	
TOTAL U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPEMNT			\$ 1,576,963	
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF THE TREASURY				
<u>Direct Program</u>				
Volunteer Income Tax Assistance Matching Grant	21.009	23VITA0201	\$ 39,833 \$ 39,833	
Total Direct Program			\$ 39,833	
Passed Through Denton County, Texas Emergency Rental Assistance Program Coronavirus State & Local Fiscal Recovery Funds Total Passed Through Denton County, Texas	21.023 21.027	53.6813.10.40 54.6813.10.67	1,687,951 4,787,408 \$ 6,475,359	
TOTAL U.S. DEPARTMENT OF THE TREASURY			\$ 6,515,192	
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES Passed Through Texas Homeless Network				
Community Services Block Grant - CARES Act	93.569	20210005	\$ 6,120	
Passed Through Texas Workforce Commission Child Care Development Fund	93,575	040CCQ002	207,228	
TOTAL U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES			\$ 213,348	
TOTAL EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS			\$ 8,305,503	

NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

NOTE 1 – BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards (the "Schedule") includes the federal grant activity of United Way of Denton County, Inc. under programs of the federal government for the year ended March 31, 2023. The information in this schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of the Uniform Guidance. Because the schedule presents only a selected portion of the operations of United Way of Denton County, Inc., it is not intended to and does not present the financial position, changes in net assets or cash flows of United Way of Denton County, Inc.

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

United Way of Denton County, Inc. accounts for all awards under federal programs using the accrual basis of accounting in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States. This basis of accounting recognizes revenue in the accounting period in which they are earned, and expenses in the accounting period in which the liability is incurred. Expenses are recognized following the cost principles contained in the Uniform Guidance, wherein certain types of expenses are not allowable.